NEW HOPE-SOLEBURY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Engaging, Enriching, and Empowering All Students
through a World-Class Education

Finance Committee
April 19, 2018
6:00PM - Upper Elementary School Library

Per BOG 006.2, all public meetings of the Board of Directors,
including committees, are audio recorded.

Call to Order
Approve Minutes from the March 15, 2018 Meeting

0Old Business
s None

New Business
o 2017-2018 Budget
o Fiscal Dashboard
o Budget Transfers
e 2018-2019 Budget Update
o April draft of budget
o MBIT 2018-2019 Budget
* Audit RFP - Engagement Letter
o Contracts
o New
* ALICE Training Institute Master Service Agreement

o Renew
* Sweet, Stevens, Katz & Williams - Special Education Pool Counsel
* Transportation Update
Public Comment

Adjournment




NEW HOPE-SOLEBURY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Engaging, Enriching, and Empowering All Students
through a World-Class Education

Finance Committee Minutes
March 15, 2018

Board Chair— Mr. Mark Cowell
Administrative Liaison—Mr. Andrew Lechman
Attendance—Please see the accompanying committee attendance sheet.

Mr. Cowell called the meeting to order at 6:05 pm.

The minutes of the February 15, 2018 meeting were approved. Motion made by Mr. Marcus
and seconded by Mrs. Stiefl. The committee unanimously approved.

(ld Business

¢ Dr. Yanni provided an update on the naming rights policy that he reviewed with the
committee in February. The policy is currently with our legal department for review
and once it's complete we can start to explore opportunities.

New Business

¢ Bucks County Intermediate Unit
o Programs and Services Budget for 2018-2019

Mr. Lechman provided a brief summary of the Bucks County
Intermediate Unit 2018-2019 Programs & Services and Instructional
Materials & Research Services Budget. This budget has been approved
by the Superintendents Advisory Council and the Intermediate Unit
Board of School Directors in the amount of $1,766,333 which is a
2.93% increase. Each school district in Bucks County must take action
on this budget as presented and votes are tabulated on a proportional
basis. The NHSD proposed contribution for 2018-2019 is $21,236
which represents a $446 increase from the current year.

o Special Education Services Agreement and Estimated costs for 2018-2019

This is an annual agreement that must be signed by all school districts
that receive special education services from the Intermediate Unit. We
have transitioned all of our related services to Austill’s, but there are
still a number of services that will remain with the Intermediate Unit.
This includes multiple disabilities support classroom, vision and




hearing support as the need is small and is difficult to find a sub-
contractor to provide these services. We only have a small number of
students attending these classes and it would be too costly to hire our
own staff to provide the support as it would be a 1:1 ratio of student
to teacher. There are also no other providers for the transition
services that will be provided by the Intermediate Unit. During the 17-
18 year we also transitional behavior analyst services back to the IU.

Audit RFP - Our current agreement with our auditors has ended and the district has
completed an RFP process to identify a new auditor. The RFP was sent out to 5 firms
that are in the business of completing audits for school districts and other
governmental entities. 4 firms responded with proposals and 3 met the
requirements of the RFP. All 3 responses met all the requirements of the RFP and
were very competitive on costs as compared to our prior 3 year audit costs. The
most recent audit costs were $48,000 and the lowest cost proposal was $19,500 per
year. Mr. Lechman made the recommendation to move forward with Barbacane,
Thornton & Company LLP for a 3 year engagement which with the goal of formally
approving at the next board meeting. The committee requested that Mr. Lechman
confirm costs submitted as compared to prior audit costs to assure that all services
are being captured properly.

2017-2018 Budget

o Mr. Lechman provided a brief overview of the current status of the 2017-
2018 budget as compared to the same period in the prior year. Currently all
revenues and expenses are trending normally. Current year 84% of budgeted
revenues have been received and prior year 84% was received. It was noted
that EIT continues to lag the prior year by $200,000. February receipts were
approximately $140k higher than the same period in the prior year. On the
expenditure side 53% of budgeted expenditures have been accounted for as
compared to 58% prior year.

o Budget Transfers were reviewed at this meeting and it was confirmed that
none of these transfers have an impact to the overall 17-18 budget. Mr.
Lechman discussed the $50,000 transfer request. This money was approved
for potential capital project needs for the year. Part of the districts goals for
this budget year were to put a long range capital plan in place. The
recommendation is to use these budgeted funds to complete a facility
condition assessment with the final deliverable being a multi-year listing of
all campus capital project and deferred maintenance needs. This list will be
the framework for starting the process te fully fund our capital project fund
balance.

o Mr. Lechman also provided an update on the campus revitalization project
financials.

2018-2019 Budget




o March Budget Update - Mr. Lechman provided an update on the status of the
18-19 budget. Mr. Lechman reminded the committee that it is the goal of the
administration to progress toward a final budget that is structurally balanced
with a maximum tax increase recommendation of the approved Act 1 index
which is 2.4%. As we progress toward a final budget in June many of the
unknowns will come into focus. The March version of this budget reflects all
changes that we are able to accurately update at this point in time. This
version reflects a structurally balanced budget with a 2.48% tax increase.
The preliminary budget had a deficit of $117,000 with a 3.1% tax increase.
Mr. Lechman reviewed the details of the changes with the committee.

e Strategic Initiatives
o Dr. Yanni reviewed that county Superintendents are scheduling meetings
with legislators regarding school funding. All 13 Superintendents will be
meeting quarterly with local/state representatives along with the Secretary
of Education. The goal is to host two meetings each year located at bucks
county district sites. The goal is to have targeted conversations with local
reps to fight for public education.

* A motion was made by Mr. Marcus and seconded by Mr. Kearney to move the
following items forward to the board for approval:
o Programs and Services Budget for 2018-2019
o Special Education Services Agreement and Estimated costs for 2018-2019
o 2017-2018 March Budget Transfers

Public Comment
s Public comments were made throughout the meeting and are captured in the
meeting minutes as appropriate.
o The following comments were made about non-agenda items:
o None.

Mrs. Povacz made a motion which was seconded by Mr. Kearney to adjourn the meeting at
7:15pm.
Respectfully submitted,

Andrew Lechman
Business Administrator




NEW HOPE-SOLEBYURY SCHOOL DISTRICT
Engaging, Enriching, and Empowering All Students
through a World-Class Education

Finance Committee Mecting Sign-In and Attendance
March 15,2018

Name (Please Print) Committee (C) or Public (P} |
/hel 1% /”C/r/??am ©
Mk [z )
}() A O "h‘)\—/ﬁ: (i\ P |
flaccus P@C(M@f} (¢) »
(/é“/ /éz:mdv @ ’
L (/lf e Mclerdesf (>
(ove. Mot (c P
<y Art MAFES \'ﬁ‘? ' Ce) e .
/}7/{/ él(()yc (f:)P B
A ,:gﬂ.jj S [ cir
- "mc P
St ) = T
g /97 g/ﬂ@/";’f( /N )
/‘_,»v[ifu '/K'-}‘} «ﬂl?ft /[‘ /}(J«JL / /ﬁﬂff’(_/ﬂ-(fffy ¢ (i)
k/ - d C p
¢ r
C p
c b
c P N
¢ P

Please note: This sign-in sheet will be included in the meeting minutes and posted to the District’s website.




New Hope - Solebury School District
2017 - 2018 Fiscal Dashboard - Current

March 31, 2018
16-17 16-17 16-17 17-18 17-18 17-18
16-17 Budget Actuat YTD YTD % Budget YTD YTD %
Beginning Uncommitted Fund Balance 4,332,021 4,768,811
Committed Fund Balance - PSERS 700,000 960,000
Total Beginning Fund Balance - July 1st 5,032,021 5,728,811
Revenues
Local Revenue
Real Estate Taxes 26,826,194 26,875,862 26,867,925 100% 27,952,708 27,932,302 100%
Deliquent Tax 600,000 522,749 301,539 50% 600,000 400,881 67%
Transfer Tax 760,000 917,066 562,668 74% 760,000 572051 75%
Earned Income Tax 3,800,000 4,203,127 2,438,629 64% 3,750,000 2,265311 60%
Other Local Revenue 322,817 478,925 369,250 114% 423,057 306,612 72%
State Revenue - General 2,794,910 3,071,603 2,156,214 77% 2,842,977 1,958,329 69%
State Revenue - Retirement/FICA Subsidy 3,331,452 3,266,250 1,270,183 38% 3,564,215 1,332,588 37%
Faderal Revenue 269,515 146,310 62,508 23% 219,500 38,236 17%
Total Revenue 38,704,888 39,481,892 34,028,917 88% 40,112,467 34,806,309 87%
Expenditures
Salaries and Wages 18,097,148 18,000,582 11,700,613 65% 18,183,490 11,504,318 63%
Benefits & Taxes 10,683,618 10,413,019 6,790,587 65% 11,151,650 6,841,565 61%
Professinal Services 2,369,938 2,084,760 1,321,313 63% 2,022,343 1,157,846 57%
Property Services 920,085 832,545 593,651 71% 391,885 168,700 43%
Purchased Services 3,298,423 3,144,494 1,919,019 B1% 3,447,693 1,823,573 53%
Supplies, Books, Software and Fuel 562,378 688,629 498,306 72% 1,751,446 1,038,513 59%
Equipment 235,771 173,350 114,170 ©6% 96,210 77,362  BO%
Interest, Fees, and Dues 856,913 820,756 737,224 90% 1,065,386 697,242 94%
Principal and Transfers 2,686,686 2,626,967 2,156,316 82% 2,227,500 1,500,000 67%
Total Expenses 40,110,960 38,785,102 25,830,599 67% 40,337,604 25,109,118 62%
ACTIVITY FOR YEAR {1,406,072) 696,790 2,102,862 {225,137)
PROJECTED ENDING UNCOMMITTED FUMD BALANCE 2,925,949 4,768,811 436,790 3,043,674
Fund Balance Percentage of Expenditures 7.29% 12.30% 7.55%
PSERS Committed Fund Balance 700,600 700,000 700,000
Capital Projects Fund Balance 260,000 1,760,000
TOTALENDING COMMITTED FUND BALANCE 700,000 960,000 2,460,000
TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30TH 3,625,949 5,728,811 5,503,674

2047-2018

- £IT: 17-18 YTD is lagging last year by 5175k
- State Revenue - in fine with prier year.
- Other Local Revente - [ncrease due to:

Fiscal Dashboard - 2017-2018 Highlights

Revenue - Qverall trending in line with prior year - 87% received

Expenditures - Overalt trending in line with prior year 62% used down from 67%
- Debt Service - Prior year included a $2M payment in August to close out the 1999 bond series.

$50,000 donation designated for athletics and increased interest income due to higher interest rates




218G

2.n2U8IS J0IRIISIUILIPY SSBUISNY

UCIBUGG SIB|YY 00°280°TE S saddng |esausg 0TS SRSYIY SOCOOCOCGECSZENT O0'8R0°ZE anasay Aeledpng OF6  3alasay ARladpng £000000000006S0T
UORBUCY SINBIYIY QUZIELT S wiswidinby [euded 8L S8 |y SOOCCOCOCENSZEDT COZI6'LT BAlRSEY AJRlsBpng ors 3niesay AreleBpng Z00C00000000650T
WAD [ooyas Ydiy 00°000F  § juawdinby [eydeD (47 s3uipling £0000000000CYZ0T  00°000" szy|ddng jelauzg 019 2ISNIA/AY SH 0C00ZI000E00TT0T
Ul spJROMoRg SSB|L) JO LUOE|e1sU| puk S5eyding '
WAD [0oWS ysIH 00000t § uawdinby [euded z6L £0000000000Z920T 00°000T sal|ddng-yaal 059 F3 ssaulsng 0000£TO00EN9ETOT
Ui spJeogydeg sse|g JO UO[Ie[|BISUL BUB ISBLUNG
WAD [00YIS YAIH 00000 § Jswdinby jeuded zal sBulpiIng £000000000029Z0T 00 D00C sjo0g [ p3 ssausng 0000ETOCOE0IELOT
Ul SpaBogyIRg SSB|S JO UOIR][RISU] pUe 35.Y2ing
WAD [004d5 YR 0O005T  § uatudinky |eydel 5L sBuip|ing €0000000000Z9E0T  00'00S'T sjocg o9 S3IPNIS |RI2OS SH 000DBTOODECOTTOT
Ul SRJEOQMIRY SSBID 1O UCN2|IBISU| PUR 358YDINg
Spuni paieuog S 00°0ST S sajddng jesausg 018 spung 8TTEO0000E0STIOT 00°0SE 5394 g 53nQ 3343 spung STTE00N00ENSTTOT
Jouog Aeigr s pajeuog AJesqri sl
Spund pRIRUOQ SIN 00°68LY S sayddng |esousn otg spuny 8TTEOOQODENSZZOT 00°B8LY wawdinbz ey jeydey 54 spung 8TTE00000E0SZZ0T
loucqg Aledqrt s paleuoq Alelarl S
"S100p [BLLIAIXS 104 PBPRIUSAZN 007000'ST & juawdinby [gydes AT Alunaag g Apjes £000000000099Z0T  00°000°SE s3ocq 09 wAnaIng 0000000000097.20T
pue spadAay JsgUny zeUWNg - 5,04 AB)Y J00Q
wesdoud 00°0SLT S INAITS PRIDEIUOD 06€ Alunaag 1 Ayages £000000000099Z0T 00°05£'2 syooq 0F9 wnjnapng 000000000009TZ0T
UC3EINILISD J0HISI] pue Bulles1-s 33NV
"ASNOY Ul 01 J010BJUCD WO S3URUSILIBW UME| 0000798 § luatudinby |eydes 754 spunaIn £0000000000E3Z0T  00'00T9E 2420 uMe Hit SpUNOID £0000000000EST0T
ST UoISURIL ~ ST O} JIMOW UME] 10 2SBLUIING
S306d JUSLUAC[BASE JJEIS 00049 3 sjjoog jore] Jedipuiid §39 000000000TOSEZOT 00°0LS sayddns-yss L. 059 IpPEIDH puy 000000Z00TO0TTOT
uoseay unowy uondissaq walqo 19300 unoay 0l JBjsuri] Junouny uondiassqg 1290 12lg0 JUNoxYYy waoid Jajsusl]

Junsey pleod - 8TOT ‘9 pudy
1931 Asewnuns - Jagsuel] 128png



NEW HOPE-SOLEBURY SCHOOL DiSTRICT
HIGH SCHQOL & MIDDLE SCHOOL ADDITIONS AND RENOVATIONS

SUMMARY
April 16, 2018

Total Project Budget

Contracts
GC  Skepton Construction, [nc.

MC  The Farfield Company

EC  Boro Construction

PC  Stan-Roch

AA  Sargent Enterprises, Inc.
Contracts Total

Change Orders
GC  Skepton Construction, Inc.
MC  The Farfield Company
EC Boro Construction
PC  Stan-Roch
AA  Sargent Enterprises, inc.
Changer Order Total

Pending Change Orders
GC  Skepton Construction, e,

MC  The Farfield Company

EC  Boro Construction

PC  Stan-Roch

AA  Sargent Enterprises, fnc.
Pending Change Order Total
Total Contract & Change Orders

PROJECT SOFT COSTS
Architect Fee
Credit 511,500 for MS PCO-048 [Fire Dampers)
GKO - Printing Fees
GKO - Traffic Study
RPE Fee
Project Financing
Builder's Risk Insurance
Legal Fees {Borough Escrow Solicitor & Engineer)
Permits/Approvals/Utilities
Legal Fees - District Solicitor
Construction Testing
Additional Soil Testing
HVAC TAB & Commission Verification
Environmental Testing & consulting
tndoor air quality monitoring
Furniture and Equipment
Telephone System
CCTV - Security Camera's
Other ltems {PECO, Verizon, Boiler, Fire Alamr, etc}
Compieted work - Auditorium
Interest Earned on Project Funds
Total Project Soft Costs

Qriginal Contingency

Remaining Contingency

Remaining MC Allowances

Remaining EAC Allowances

Total Remaining Contingency and Alfowances

Prior Month Contingency

28,499,599

12,975,000

5,691,000
3,810,000
800,000
88,000
23,364,000

100,270
43,187
136,333
3,000
7,100
289,390

7,780

107,550
{1,820)
113,510
23,767,399

1,502,140
{11,500
36,308
35,687
$46,490
357,330
70,000
140,000
289,020
45,000
50,000
6,200
152,770
27,288
10,000
298,384
116,000
50,000
78,956
411,100
{157,000}
4,354,173

936,845
378,027
71,443
30
449,550

467,765

Remaining Allowances - $90,680
Pending Allowance Changes - $19,237

Includes $89,500 estimate for non-code
compliant existing conditions and $16,000 to
perform MS work 2nd shift.

GKO

Advantage Engineers, Soil Testing




Mew Hape - Solebury School District
2017 - 2018 Fiscal Dashboard - Future Projections

March 31, 2018
18-19 19-20 20-21 21-22
Budget Projection Projection Projection

Beginning Uncommitted Furd Balance 3,043,674 3,043,673 2,670,647 1,910,082
Committed Fund Balance - PSERS & CAPITAL PROJECTS 2,460,000 2,460,000 2,460,000 2,460,000
Total Beginning Fund Balance - July st 5,503,674 5,503,673 5,130,647 4,370,082
Revenues
Local Revenue

Real Estate Taxes 28,664,190 29,250,391 26,833,317 30,443,200

Deliquent Tax 525,000 525,000 525,000 525,000

Transfer Tax 760,000 760,0G0 760,000 760,000

Earned Income Tax 3,750,000 3,750,000 3,750,000 3,750,000

Other Local Revenue A94,067 494,067 494,067 494,067
State Revenue - General 2,753,170 2,724,072 2,724,072 2,724,072
State Revenue - Retirement/FICA Subsidy 3,767,878 4,003,114 4,167,188 4,332,526
Federal Revenue 210,000 66,000 60,000 60,000
Total Revenue 40,924,304 41,566,645 42,313,644 43,088,865
Expenditures
Salaries and Wages 18,485,828 18,977,942 19,536,320 20,111,449
Benefits & Taxes 11,559,250 12,261,817 12,831,416 13,417,837
Professinal Servicas 2,237,002 2,234,002 2,234,002 2,234,002
Property Services and Utilities 411,225 411,225 411,225 411,225
Purchased Services 3,137,710 3,142,893 3,148,231 3,153,729
Supplies, Books, Software and Fuel 1,539,845 1,539,845 1,539,845 1,539,845
Equipment 274,060 106,652 106,652 106,652
lnterest, Fees, and Dues 1,142,924 1,083,140 3,013,200 960,635
Principal and Transfers 2,136,500 2,182,155 2,253,228 2,301,568
Total Expenses 40,924,304 41,939,671 43,074,208 44,236,942
ACTIVITY FOR YEAR (0) (373,026} {760,565) (1,148,076}
PROJECTED ENDING UNCOMMITTED FUND BALANCE 3,043,673 2,670,647 1,910,082 762,006

Fund Balance Percentage of Expenditures 7.44% 6.37% 4.43% 1.72%

PSERS Committed Fund Balance 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000

Capital Projects Fund Balance 1,760,000 1,760,000 1,760,000 1,760,000
TOTAL ENDING COMMITTED FUND BALANCE 2,460,000 2,460,000 2,460,000 2,460,000
TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30TH 5,503,673 5,130,647 4,370,082 3,222,006

Revenue

- Beyond 18-19
- Salary Average increase of 3%

- Medical - 6% increase

- Insurance - Increase 3% per year

Assumptions

- April Budget - 2.4% in 18-19 and 2.0% beyond
- Exceptions were approved at 2.82%

- State - Education subsidy amount adjusted to reflect current state subsidy amount per 17-18 approved budget
- Retirement/FICA subsidy increase with Expenditure increases

Expenditures - 18-19 now reflects first look of 18-19 budget process

- Payrolf Benefits - 3% to match salary increase
- Retirement - Increase based on PSERS schedule released December 2017

- Debt Service - Matches current debt service scheduie projections




{££9728T) (uoponpay) / asesdou| - a3uRUEA
Y0g'vZe’or SBNUBADY JUBIND
{€€9°25T) se3uRYD aNUBABY |BI0L
- 13430
182 (saBueyd Ae(es se) ApISQNS §Y3Sd / YOI - 93815
000°0S 3UICIU| 15248V
(r1¥'eoz) 9%b"7 01 %T'€ WOJ4 UOJIONpPay - saxe] 9318153 |esy
LEG'ILO'TY anuaAIY AJBUILUIR.d
[Hdy/ydien

{Z9tLTT)

uojeaay |Lidy o3 paiedwo) Ateuiwaag
SINUBAZY - SADNVHD 139dN49 40 NOLLYITIDNODIY
LOIMLSIO T00HDIS AYNg1105-3dOH AM3AN

sasuadxz PUE SENUIASY 4O J0dLL) 3N

{s60'0LT) {rL6'612) (Uonanpay) / sealou| - aduelgA
rOEYZEor STY'YPE'oY saJnipuadxd weln)
{960°0L2) (rL6'612) sofuey) 2inypuadxy 210,
- (0) B0
(6v6°2) BYIO
{0s2°L) 193png [BUd LG
GET'9ET Ajnodag pue Asjes
(008'sT) {oos'sz) 110 1end
(ooo'sz) (oo0'sz) [an4 [2s31q - uoieModsuel |
0009t 0009z uoUaAISIUl AjJeT - uDIRINPT [B1PedS
YIETL VIETL $1507) ] - UOI3BINP] [B172dS
(Le9'Eg) (££91%) %ET JO UOIDNPaY 218y - UoNesusdwo] sI9NIom
(£9€'53) (£9g78) a8uey) JBLIED - 411/A1S/11D
(94¥'sT) {949°5T) sasAo|dw3 map - safueyD spausg
{£z8'5¢€T) 9SEAJIU] YT 15918 [BMBUBY [BUIl4 UO paseg - 91y sHausg
{£15°29) {£19°L8) 9583.0U[ 55 00T PUZ Lo poseg - a1ey sijauag
{88256) (gge'se) 9583UIUL 94/ {007 ST UO poseg - 918y syousg
(€£012T) {€52'TT) Asejeg
66EVET'TY B6EFET TV [230) ainypusdxg Aleuiwijsig
udy yaae

uoneiay [udy 01 pauedwo) Aeunu|id
S3InUPUIdX3 - SADNVHI 139aNg 40 NOLLYMIINOITY
JI1Y1SIT TOOHDS A4NAaIT0S-3d0OH MaN



New Hope - Solebury School District
2017 - 2018 Fiscal Dashboard - Future Projections

March 31, 2018
18-19 1920 20-21 21-22
Budget Projection Prajection Projection
Beginning Uncommitied Fund Balance 3,043,674 3,043,673 2,084,446 139,755
Committed Fund Balance - PSERS & CAPITAL PROJECTS 2,460,000 2,460,000 2,460,000 2,460,000
Tetal Beginning Fund Balance - July 1st 5,503,674 5,503,673 4,544,446 2,599,755
Revenues
Local Revenue
Real Estate Taxes 28,664,190 28,664,190 28,649,190 28,649,190
Deliguent Tax 525,000 525,000 525,000 525,000
Transfer Tax 760,000 760,000 760,000 760,000
Earned Income Tax 3,750,000 3,750,000 3,750,000 3,750,000
Other Local Revenue 494,067 494,067 494,067 494,067
State Revenue - General 2,753,170 2,724,072 2,724,072 2,724,072
State Revenue - Retirement/FICA Subsidy 3,767,878 4,003,114 4,167,188 4,332,526
Federal Revenus 210,00¢ 60,000 60,000 60,000
Total Revenue 40,924,304 40,980,443 41,129,517 41,294,855
Expenditures
Salaries and Wages 18,485,828 18,977,542 19,536,320 20,111,449
Benefits & Taxes 11,559,210 12,261,817 12,831,416 13,417,837
Professinal Services 2,237,002 2,234,002 2,234,002 2,234,002
Property Services and Utllities 411,225 411,225 411,225 411,225
Purchased Services 3,137,710 3,142,853 3,148,231 3,153,729
Suppties, Books, Software and Fuel 1,535,845 1,539,845 1,539,845 1,539,845
Equipmert 274,060 106,652 106,652 106,652
Interest, Fees, and Dues 1,142,924 1,083,140 1,013,290 960,635
Principal and Transfers 2,136,500 2,182,155 2,253,228 2,301,568
Total Expenses 40,924,304 41,939,671 43,074,208 44,236,942
ACTIVITY FOR YEAR (0} {959,228) (1,944,691) (2,942,086)
PROJECTED ENDING UNCOMMITTED FUND BALANCE 3,043,673 2,084,445 139,755 (2,802,332}
Fund Balance Percentage of Expenditures 7.44% 4.97% 0.32% -5.33%
PSERS Committed Fund Batanca 700,000 700,000 700,000 700,000
Capital Projects Fund Bafance 1,760,000 1,760,000 1,760,000 1,760,000
TOTAL ENDING COMMITTED FUND BALANCE 2,460,000 2,460,000 2,460,000 2,460,000
TOTAL ENDING FUND BALANCE - JUNE 30TH 5,503,673 4,544,446 2,594,755 {342,332}

Assumptions

Reventse

- April Budget - 2.4% in 18-19 and 0.0% beyond as a baseline
- Exceptions were approved at 2.82%

- State - Education subsidy amount adjusted to reflect current state subsidy amount per 17-18 approved budget
- Retirerment/FICA subsidy increase with Expenditure increases

Expenditures - 18-19 now reflects first fook of 18-19 budget process
- Beyond 18-19

- Salary Average increase of 3%
- Payroll Benefits - 3% to match salary increase
- Medical - 6% increase
- Retiremeant - Increase based on PSERS schedule released December 2017
- Insuranice - Increase 3% per year
- Debt Service - Matches current debt service schedule projections




Middle Bucks

) Institute of Technology
“Preparing tomorrow’s workforce today”

The Middie Bucks Institute of Technology does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, sex,
disability or age in its programs or activiies and provides equal access to the Boy Scouts and other designated youth
groups. Inquiries may be directed to Middle Bucks Institute of Technology, civilrighiscoordinator@mbit.org, Title 1X
Coordinator or Section 504 Coordinator at 2740 York Road, Jamison, PA 18929 or 215-343-2480.




GENERAL FUND BUDGET HIGHLIGHTS
GENERAL OVERVIEW

To assist Member School Districts with Act 1 of 2006, a preliminary proposed General Fund
Budget was presented to the Executive Council on November 13, 2017 & March 12, 2018 to
provide an estimate of the planned operating and debt service expenditures for school year
2018/2019. This presentation on April 9, 2018 updates the Proposed General Fund Budget for
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018. The Act 1 Index is 2.4% for 2018/19 and was 2.5% for
2017/2018.

The proposed General Fund expenditures and Authority Lease Rental cost with budget-to-budget
comparison are summarized in table A:

Table A
Proposed General Fund Expenditures
2018/2019 2017/2018 $ Change % Change
Proposed General Fund Expenditures $9,791,364 $9,598,974 $192,390 2.00%
Authority Lease Rental 1,461,996 1,465,996 (4,000) -0.27%
Total General Fund Expenditures $11,253,360 $11,064,970 $188,390 1.70%

This proposed financial plan provides a realistic budget to continue providing a high quality
education to our students and demonstrates an effort by the Administration to continue their fiscal
responsibility.

PROJECTED MEMBER DISTRICTS’ CONTRIBUTIONS & OTHER FUNDING
SOURCES

MBIT receives its funding and revenue from local, state and federal sources. The largest portion
of local revenue is Member Districts’ contributions to the General Fund for career and technical
education and operating expenditures. Per the Articles of Agreement, the Member Districts share
the cost of operating the School based on the average daily membership (ADM) of students. For
budgeting, the last two years ending actual ADM and October 1, 2017 PIMS enrollment is used to
allocate the member contribution for 2018/2019. This table provides the enrollment information
used for 2018/2019 funding, Also see page 16.

Table B
Allocation — Oct 1 PIMS

2018/2019
201572016 2016/2017 2017/2018 School Year
School Year School Year October 1 Averape

Member Districts ADM ADM PIMS ADM %
Centennial 187.69 184.88 196.00 189.52 26.20%
Central Bucks 377.45 37098 370.00 372.81 51.54%
Council Rock 135,72 138.1 142.00 138.61 19.16%
New Hope-Solebury 24.4 23.94 19.00 22,45 3.10%

725.26 717.9 727.00 723.39 100.0%




The rolling average projects that 723.39 half day time students on an about schedule will attend in
2018/2019 compared to 739.30 in 2017/2018 and 752.56 in 2016/2017. See Table C for Proposed
Member District’s Contribution / Revenue from Member Districts.

The actual cash amount to be paid by Member District’s in 2018/2019 will be adjusted by the
balance due to or from Member Districts as of June 30, 2017 for the 2016/2017 fiscal year, Based
on the net secondary vocational costs and actual ADM at year-end June 30, 2017 versus average
ADM employed in budget preparation, the net amount due to members is $325,840. This net
amount will be refunded to or collected from members with their 2018/2019 contributions to
MBIT. See Table C below and the Total Due with Adjustment $7,685,624 at bottom of page 16.

Table C
Total Due with Adjustment — Net Due (to) from Members for 2016/2017
New Hope-

2016/2017 Centennial Central Bucks Council Rock Solebury Total
Receipts from Members (+) $1,960,641 $4,112,055 $1,205,746 $173,633 $7,452,075
Voc-Ed Subsidy (1) 104,953 211,113 75,880 13,606 405,552
Net Secondary Costs (-) 1,939,435 3,892 428 1,449,116 250,809 7,531,788
Due to (from) Members $126,159 $430,741 ($167,490) {$63,570) $325,840
Proposed 2017/2018 Receipts

from Members $2,098,960 $4,128,848 $1,535,061 $248,595 $8,011 464
Less: Due to Members {($126,159) {$430,741) $167,490 63,570 ($325,840)
Contribution Due w/Adjust, $1,972,801 $3,698,107 $1,702,551 $312,165 $7,685,624

LEASE RENTAL

The Member Districts make lease rental payments on behalf of MBIT to the Middle Bucks AVTS
Authority to fund repayment of the Series of 2014 and 2015 bonds. These bonds were issued to
refinance Series of 2006 bonds issued when school renovation occurred from 2006 to 2008. The
Lease Rental for 2018/2019 and 2017/2018 are $1,461,996 and $1,465,996, respectively. Per the
Articles of Agreement, the Authority’s debt service is allocated to Member Districts using the
market value as determined by the State Tax Equalization Board. See page 23 for more
information.

See Table D below and page 15 for a summary of Member Districts® contributions to fund the
preliminary proposed 2018/2019 and approved 2017/2018 budgets.
Table D
Proposed Member Districts’ Contributions

2018/2019 2017/2018 $ Change Change

General Fund Receipts from Members $8,011,464 $7,853.674 $157,790 2.01%
Authority Lease Rental 1,461,996 1,465,996 4,000 -0.27%
Total Projected Contributions $9,473,460 $9,319,670 $153,790 1.65%




The change for 2018/2019 is primarily driven by contractual obligations for salaries, health
insurance and PSERS retirement cost.

State subsidies are received in form of the Vocational Education Subsidy which is paid based on
Vocational Average Daily Membership (VADM). Subsidy received in 2018/2019 will be based
upon the VADM from 2017/2018. The Vocational Education Subsidy is projected even with
2017/2018. The state has paid a Supplemental Equipment Grant for 2017/2018. There is no
certainty that one will be paid in 2018/2019. The state also pays subsidies for Social Security and
Retirement that are approximately one-half of employer’s budgeted payroll expense.

Federal subsidy is for Carl D. Perkins Local Plan and has been projected to be $267,000 compared
to $265,000 for 2017/2018. The 2018/2019 allocation is $267,721.

OTHER INFORMATION

The annualized CPI-U for the Philadelphia region:

2017 2016 2015

December 0.8% 1.7% -0.2%

August 1.4% 0.3% -0.3%
Fund Balances as of July 1; 2017 2016
Committed for PSERS — General Fund $20,000 $75.000
Unassigned — Adult Ed $209.181 $205,090
Unassigned — Production Control $ 74,963 $223.409
Nonspendable $134,124 -0-

Funds held by Bucks & Montgomery County Schools Health Care Consortium from the Bucks
Limited Health Care Consortium restricted as to use were reduced to zero from $95,869 in fiscal
year 2017. The budget approved March 14, 2016 authorized use of $95,869 as a “premium
holiday” in 2016/2017.

ASSUMPTIONS

This presentation of the proposed budget includes assumptions for many unknowns including:
negotiations with the MBEA, member district contract negotiations, equivalent premium rates for
health insurance, property and casualty insurance rates, contracted services, utilities and others,

Significant assumptions impacting this budget projection include:

1. Object Code 100 — Salaries and wages in this budget increase $128,024 or 1.33% of
the budget-to-budget increase. The teacher salary matrix is prepared using input from
member district teachers’ contracts. One of the member districts maybe in status quo
with their teachers. The budget for teachers’ salaries assumes this and also
contemplates changes for step and level of teachers, The salaries for administrators
(Act 93) and for support staff wages are budgeted using a two percent increase.

2. Object Code 200 — Benefits. Overall benefits are projected to increase by $123,184 or

7




1.28% of the budget-to-budget increase. More specifically:

*  Medical & prescription benefit cost are budgeted using the plans offered under
the teachers’ contract to all eligible employees and known elections thereunder.
MBIT will receive first, second and third look of the July 1, 2018 renewal, This
budget has used premium equivalent rates proposed by DVHT: 17.3% health
increase and 11.4% decrease for pharmacy for combined effective increase
11.8%. Net increase over 2017/2018 is $46,302.

o Teachers and all eligible staff participating in the benefits contribute a
percentage of the monthly health and prescription plan premium
equivalents based on coverage they elect per CBA with MBEA.
Employee contribution for the PPO plans is 22% or 17% of premium
cost depending on coverage elected. For the HMO POS plan,
employees share 12% of premium. The prescription plan co-pay is
$5/$25/$40 for generic, formulary/non-formulary,

o The MBEA contract is being reopened in 2017/2018 to negotiate
employee contribution for medical benefits.

o These costs are self-insured.

o Health and prescription benefits will be offered by the Delaware Valley
Health Trust starting July 1, 2018. MBIT was given notice of departure
from the Bucks & Montgomery County Schools Health Care
Consortium (BMCS). Immediate savings of $36,609 are reflected.

o MBIT Administration recommended leaving BMCS to move to
Delaware Valley Health Trust for fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018.
Recommendation was made to achieve rate stability, pooling of all
claims, to reduce financial risk and enhance benefits via Wellness
program that has monetary incentives for employees to take care of
themselves. S : C

o The Executive Council passed motions to join DVHT and to leave
BMCS at their March 12, 2018 meeting.

» Dental benefits are provided via United Concordia/School Claims Services and
are self-insured. The budget line cost for 2018/2018 are $10,648
lower when compared to 2017/2018.

= Retirement has been budgeted using information from PSERS 2016 CAFR
using certified employer contribution rate of 33.43% for 2018/2019. For
2017/2018, the PSERS certified rate was 32.57%. Employer retirement
contribution cost increase budget-to-budget $82,911 or 5.32%. The Executive
Council has approved creation of a Committed Fund Balance for purposes of
mitigating the escalating employer contributions to PSERS. The Committed
Fund Balance is currently $20,000 with it being used in current budget for
2017/2018.

= Workers compensation has been budgeted according to renewal for 2018/2019
from SDIC that reflects 5% loyalty discount and 5% discount for Safety
Committee.

3. Object Code 300 — Purchased Professional & Technical Services decrease by $14,485
or -0.15% budget-to-budget from 2017/2018. The net decrease includes money for a
GASB 75 actuarial study and reduction of other professional fees.

8




. Object Code 400 — Purchased Property Services are presented as a net decrease of
$17,414 or -0.18% budget-to-budget from 2017/2018. Savings come from reduction in
cost for contracted services.

. Object Code 500 — Other Purchased Services shows net decrease budget-to-budget of
-0.20% or -$18,865 budget-to-budget.

. Object Code 600 — Supplies cost have a net increase of $1,046. Program costs for
supplies are budget $3,744 lower compared to 2017/2018. Electricity cost are budgeted
at same level as 2017/2018. MBIT has a fixed energy price agreement through June
30, 2019 and natural gas basis agreement for July 2017 through July 2019. In fiscai
years 2018 and 2019, MBIT will be hosting the local District SkillsUSA competitions
with an added $14,000 to the supplies line for Student Activities.

. Object Code 700 — Equipment are $9,100 lower than 2017/2018.
. Object Code 800 — Other is budgeted even with 2017/2018.




MIDDLE BUCKS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

PROPOSED BUDGET SUMMARY

BUDGETED GENERAL FUND CONTRIBUTIONS BY MEMBER DISTRICTS RECORDED TO 1300-564,

2016-2017
GENERAL FUND Pg. 15
LEASERENTAL DEBT Pg. 22

2016-2017 CONTRIBUTIONS

2017-2018
GENERAL FUND Pg. 15
LEASE RENTAL DEBT Pg. 22

2017-2018 CONTRIBUTIONS

2018-2019
GENERAL FUND pe. 15
LEASE RENTAL DEBT Pg. 22

2018-2019 CONTRIBUTIONS

CENTRAL NEW HOPE-
CENTENNIAL BUCKS COUNCIL ROCK  SOLEBURY TOTAL
$ 1,960,641 § 4112055 § 1,205746 § 173,633 7,452,075
206,739 % 667,960 472,609 112,714 1,460,022
$ 2167380 $ 4780015 § 1678355 § 286,347 8,912,097
Year-to-year percentage increase 1.80%
3 2,047453 § 4,251,194 & 1,350,047 § 204,981 7,853,674
206,412 % 673,039 473,810 112,735 1,465,996
$ 2253865 § 4924233 0§ 1823857 § 317,716 9,319,670
Year-to-year percentage increase 4.57%
$ 2098960 § 4128848 § 1,535,061 3 248,595 8,011,464
201,756 § 671,787 473,248 115,205 1,461,996
$ 2300716 & 4,800,635 § 2,008309 § 363,800 9,473,460
Year-to-year percentage increase 1.65%

Note: General fund contribution is allocated to member districts using a three-year averaging of ADM,
Lease rental debt is for the Series of 2014 and 2015 Middle Bucks AVTS Authority Revenue
Bonds. Lease Rental is allocated based on market value as determined by Pennsylvania State Tax
Equalization Board - DCED.

16




MIDDLE BUCKS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY

PROPOSED BUDGET SUMMARY

REVENUES

CODE CATEGORY

6000  REVENUE FROM LOCAL SOURCES

6510 INTEREST
6740 FEES
6910 RENTAIL OF BUILDING

6943 TUITION - ADULT STUDENTS

6944 TUITION - NON PARTICIPATING DISTRICT

6946 RECEIPTS FROM MEMBER DISTRICTS
6991 REFUND OF PRIOR YEARS EXPENSE

6999 MISCELLANEQUS REVENUE

TOTAL REVENUE LOCAL SOURCES

7600 REVENUE FROM STATE SOURCES
7220 VOCATIONAL EDUCATION SUBSIDIES

7810 SOCIAL SECURITY-STATE SHARE
7820 RETIREMENT-STATE SHARE

TOTAL REVENUE STATE SOURCES

8000 REVENUE FROM FEDERAL SOURCES

8521 LOCAL PLAN/PERKINS

TOTAL REVENUE FEDERAL SOURCES

9000 TRANSFERS / OTHER SOURCES

9810 COMMITED FUND BALANCE - PSERS

9500 BMCSHCC - MBIT - PREMIUM HOLIDAY
TOTAL TRANSFERS / OTHER SOURCES

TOTAL PROPOSED REVENUES

DISTRICT CONTRIBUTION BREAKDOWN

CENTENNIAL
CENTRAL BUCKS
COUNCIL ROCK

NEW HOPE-SOLEBURY

2016/2017 2017/2018 2018/2019
APPROVED  APPROVED  PROPOSED
BUDGET BUDGET BUDGET % CHANGE
$1,000 $1,000 $1,200
6,000 6,000 6,000
6,000 6,000 9,000
36,000 36,000 36,000
15,300 15,300 15,300
7,452,075 7,853,674 8,011,464
8,000 8,000 8,000
10,000 12,000 15,000
7,534,375 7,937,974 8,101,964 2.07%
420,000 420,000 420,000
171,860 177,700 182,400
696,200 778,300 820,000
1,288,060 1,376,000 1,422,400 3.37%
281,000 265,000 267,000
281,000 265,000 267,000 . 0.75%
55,000 20,000 0
95,869 0 0
150,869 20,000 0 -100.00%
$9,254,304 $9,598,974 $9,791,364 2.00%
{TABLE C. PAGE 6)
TOTAL PUE WITH
Oct 1 PIMS ADJUSTMENT
26.20% $1,960,641 $2,047,453 $2,098,960 $1,972,801
51.54% $4,112,055 $4,251,194 $4.128.848 $3,698,107
19.16% $1,205,746 $1,350,047 $1,535,061 $1,702,551
3.10% $173,633 $204,981 $248,595 $312,165
100.00% $7,452,075 $7.853,674 $8,011,464 $7,685,624

16




MIDDLE BUCKS INSTITUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
PROPOSED BUDGET SUMMARY - LEASE RENTAL

SCHOOL FACILITIES LEASE - MIDDLE BUCKS VOCATIONAL-TECHNICAL SCHOOL AUTHORITY

SERIES OF 2014 BONDS - BALANCE JULY 1, 2018 $ 9,405,000
SERIES OF 2015 BONDS - BALANCE JULY 1, 2018 4,030,000
$ 13,435,000

LEASE RENTAL COVERING DEBT SERVICE IS PAID BY THE MEMBER DISTRICTS' DIRECTLY TO THE
AUTHORITY's TRUSTEE FOR THE BOND HOLDERS IN AUGUST & FEBRUARY.

Budgeted Actual Projected

2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019
6946 LEASE REVENUE $ 146599 §$ 1,465,996 & 1,461,996
5110 DEBT SERVICE - AUTHORITY BONDS $ 146599  $ 1465996  § 1,461,996
PRINCIPAL $ 1010000 % 1,010,000 $ 1,035,000
INTEREST , 447 996 447,996 418,996
ADMINISTRATIVE FEE 8,000 8,000 8,000

$ 1,465,996 $ 1,465,996 $ 1,461,996

Rental is allocated to the member districts' on the basis of the proportion which the market value of
each Participating School District bears to the total market valuation of all the Participating School
Districts, as certified by the DCED State Tax Equalization Board annually. An annual administrative fee
equaling $4,000 per bond issue is paid by the sending districts in addition to the debt service.

7M/2017 Budgeted Actual Projected
STEB using 7/1/20186 using 7/1/2017 using 7/1/2017
Market Value STER'MV 2015 = STEB MV 2016 STEB MV 2016

2018 2017/2018 2017/2018 2018/2019
Centennial 13.80% $ 206,412 $ 202,307 % 201,756
Central Bucks 45.95% 673,039 673,625 671,787
Council Rock 32.37% 473,810 474 543 473,248
New Hope-Solebury 7.88% 112,735 115,521 115,205
100.00% $ 1,465,996 $ 1,465,996 $ 1,461,996

The most current STEB MV available is 2018 effective July 1, 2017. 2017 MV is published on July 1, 2018.
Member School Districts should use the Projected column numbers to budget lease rental.

Member School Districts will receive a subsidy from the Pennsylvania Department of Education
for reimbursement of the cost of construction from the 2008-2008 renovations at MBIT. Members should include
in their projected state subsidies the following:

2018 MV Projected PDE 2071 PDE 2071

STEB 20172018 201712018 2018/2019

Centennial 13.80% $ 69,212 $ 67,835 $ 67,643
Central Bucks 45,95% 225676 225,872 225,231
Council Rock 32.37% 158,873 159,118 158,667
New Hope-Solebury 7.88% 37,801 38,735 38,625
100.00% 3 491,562 $ 491,561 $ 490,166

23




4

9L = 8T0Z//TOT 404 9SEIIIU] PAUIQWIOT |BIUSY 3SE PUE SUQIIRISA() JOJ USIINGILINOD 1DISI JIqUIRIA

T
|
;
H
i

O¥8'STE  $

PR rd 3 $JOLISHG |00Y2S IBgLIBI 0 ang sdueleq
00002 $||6980sT $
- $ || 698°¢6 S DOHSING ,ABPIOY,, Wnjald
€96, S || 60F'eze $ [043UCD UOIONPOLd - psudisseun
181602 S| 068050 ¢ P3 yNpy - paudisseun
yelvel  §1| - $ 8|qepuzdsuon
00002 $ 1100068 $/|o0c'0z| $1i]000%G, $ $¥ISd - paIwwe)
8T0Z/LI0T £10Z/910Z LI/0g/9 910¢/0¢/9 T8oUE[Eq puny
a3ziiLn / gaInnsNod SIINVIVE AN
%0L4'T 06€88T S || 09E8°€STIT S || TLE'PSO'TT § || 9TEYTLOT $ || T2E€LPEOT § || €9E°/EZ0T $ ANNIATY TWLOL
%000 %00'001- |(000'02) - 000°02 698°0ST 598°0ST 000°00¢T SYIASNYYL / IDNYIVE ANNd | 0006
%700 %S0 000t 000497 000592 000'18T TLT'89T SPT8T SA2YN0S TYYIA34 0008
1
%TY0 %/EE oov'ot 00v'TTYT 000'9LET 090'882'T TE9'SLTT 0ST'S/T'T SADYNOS ALVIS 000L
%900 %SE L aczT'9 00506 00EYg 00£'C8 $62°99 9.9'6L $I2¥NOS Y201 ¥IHIO
%BET . S9'T 06/4'€ST 09%'€4¥6 T/9'61€'6 L60'TTE'R S57'985'8 £60'105'8 SYIGNTN WOUYS SLdiFITY
%z %05 T ¥30'9% 008'€9¢ 9T/ LTE [¥€'987 SLYSPE 9/9'15¢€ AYNEF105-IdOH MIN
%91 %ITOT T5P'peT 60E'800°Z [98'ET8T SGE8/9T STT'SF8'T S08'S6/°T 20 TIINNDD
%ZT T~ %152 {855'ceT) S£9'008'y EETYTEY ST008L"Y 019 TSEY ErEVIEY SY2NE TVYLNID|
%TE0 %80T 1889t S || 9tL00ET S || S98'ESTT ¢ || 08€°L9T'T S || £50°0v0T S || ®9T'sTO‘T ¢ WINNILNID]
TVINIY 3SVIT ANV NOILYONGT
INNIAIY T¥I0T 000S
‘ang oL-and |! (3svagdaa) || (asvayoaq) 139ang 1394ng 13nang TNLY NV NO1LdI¥2s3qa
(3sv3yoaqa) || /3svaudNi % || /ASVIHONI $ || 43I5040ud AINOUddY aInOUddY £10Z/9102 9T0Z/ST0Z
JASYIHONI % 6T0Z/8102 8T0Z/LT0Z £10Z/9102

8T0Z ‘€ 1YdV

SWid T 120 BNISN 31vadn J3LLININGD

AYVIAINNS 1394aN4d 6T0Z/810C

ADOITONHDIAL 40 3LNLILSNI $22N4 37aqIN



Gc

%0L'T 06£'83T mm O9EESTTT $ || TL6'FO0TT $ || 9TEVILOT S || TTELHEDT § |} €9E°LETOT & STHNLIGNIdXT TY.LOL
%¥Q0- || %LTO- {000r) 966"T9V'T 966'59t'T ZT0097'T 7T0'09%'T 08Ev97'T TVAN3Y 3SVIT ALMOHLNY 0TTS
i ; [
%000 | %000 - 000'0s 000°05 000°0¢ IAYISTH AHVLIAOCONG 0065
I i _
%00°0 - - - - 000'00T 000°0ST NN 3IAYISTY TY.LIGYD OL ¥3ISNYYL| 02Z8
%00°C %00°0 - S8/ T S8.TT STETT €6T'TT 9386 Y3IHLO 008
_ I
%80°0- %8E9T- {oot's) 0sT'or 055'sS Q0g'sg 8TSF6 $97°80T 1INIWdIND3 002
%00 %EET 06L% 0v8'0TT 05090t 0£0'602 LEFI3T ¥0£'£9T $3MNddNS YAHLO 11V
%0070 %0070 - Qos‘0tz 00S°0TT S97'sET SEEETE TET'9TZ SAILTILN
%E0'0- %LTT- (7tL€) SBE06T 621'F6¢ SEEFOE 006'59Z TEr'e6T $3r1ddNS TYNOLLINYLSN
ISAN4dNS 009
%LTO- %8S L~ (59881} S0T'0EL 0L6'STE SE6'/ST ETVTZT T£5°907 SIJIAYAS QISYHIUNC ¥IHLO 00%
%310~ %ELT- (STE'LT) SETTTY | 059'gc9 12/'6¢9 ¥3¢'9/5 95/°2E9 SIDINYIS ALYISO%d CISYHOUN 00
I
%ET'0- %TLTT" {a8t"vT) 0T¥'66 SO6'ETT 00£'50T P/8TTT SFELL SADIAYIS TYIINHIIAL 73 TYNOISSTIOYd 00§
%gL0 %YEY 162'98 BSZ'9/0°T 896'686°T SR9°TIR'T 897°T9LT £TLYZS'T (3N 78 2/ ‘SIS "WIId) AMOLNLYLS
%6070~ %rTS- {80v'6) S00°0/T YIv6LT 0SE'ZLT TSL'RTT 050971 TYNLIVYLNGD/ALT/34/NOISIA/TYLNAG
%770 %59'S zog'sy ag5‘gag ¥3Z'613 T9ESLL LOV'E0L 66575/ NOELdIYDISTHd 8 1¥2ITIN
'SLI43N3g 002
%S0°0- %CSS- (00s's) STT'v6 ST9'65 Sr8'vs €94 %L L6EDTT AYYHOdINGL @ S3LNLILSENS
%9E°0 %05°T TS9'6E €9T929'T 7059857 9/0'€ES’T Z88'905'T L88'89Y'T SADIAYAS LHOdNS ¥ NINAY
%580 %E0'E TL8E6 $ || STS'88T'e S || £59'PE0'E S || 69L°8C0°c § || SI6'8E6'T S || OISTO6T S YAGIA - SYIMDVAL
'SADYM TR STINYIVYS Q0T
‘ang oL-ang|| {3svawdaa) || {3Isvayozq) 139dn9g 3nang 139ang YNV VNIV NOl1d[¥2$3a
{3svayoaqa} || fISVIUINI% || /ASVIHONI $ !} @3ISOd0OUd JIAQYddY G3N0YddY LT0Z/910Z 9T0Z/5T02
f3SVIUINI % 6102/8102 8T0Z/LT0T £T02/9102
8T0T ‘€ 1Y¥dv

SINId T 120 DNISN 31v¥ddN J3LLININGD

AYVIAINNS 139AN9g 6102/810¢

ADOIONHIAL 30 FLNLIISNI $%0N49 I1aqiN



Barbacanc, Thornton & Company LLP
200 Springer Building
3411 Silverside Road
Wilmington, Defaware 19810

T 302.478.8940
F 302.468.4001

April 10, 2018 www.btcpa.com

Mr. Andrew Lechman

Business Adminlstrator/Board Secretary
New Hope-Solebury School District
180 West Bridge Street

New Hope, PA 18938-1392

Dear Mr. Lechman:

We are pleased o confirm our understanding of the services we are to provide the New Hope-Solebury School
District for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2019, and 2020. We will audit the financial sialements of the
governmental activities, the business-type activiies, each major fund, and the aggregate remdaining fund
information, including the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic
financial statements of the New Hope-Solebury School District as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018, 2019,
and 2020. Accounting standards generally accepted in the United States of America provide for certain required
supplemeniary information (RSN}, such as management's discussion and analysis (MD&A), to supplement the New
Hope-Solebury School District's basic financial statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounfing Standards Board, who considers it o be an
essential part of financial reporting for piacing the basic financial statements In an approptiate operational,
economic, or historical context. As pari of ocur engagement, we will apply certain limited procedures to the New
Hope-Solebury School District’s R8I in accordance with auditing standards generally accepled in the United Sfates
of America. These limited procedures will consist of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inguiries, the
basic financial statements, and olher knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statemenits.
We will not express an opinion of provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. The following RSl s
required by generally accepted accounting principles and will be subjected fo certain limited procedures, but
will not be audited:

+  Management's Discussion and Analysis
» Schedule of the District's Propottionale Share of the Net Pension Liability - PSERS
¢ Schedule of District Contribufions

Audit Objeclivas

The objeciive of our audit is the expression of opinions as fo whether your basic financial stalements are fairy
presented, in dll material respects, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
Slates of America and fo report on the fairness of the supplementary information referred to in the second
paragraph when considered In relation o the financlal statements as a whole. Our audit will be conducted in
accordance with auditing slandards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards for
financial audils contained In Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, and will include tfesls of the accounting records of the New Hope-Sclebury School Distiict and other

BARBACANE
THORNTON
& COMPANY

CERTHED FUBLIC ACUOUNTANTS




Engagsment Lelter Mr. Lechman
Aprl 10, 2018 Page 2

procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. We will Issue a wiitten report upon
complefion of our aqudit of the New Hope-Solebury School Distiict's financial statements. OQur report will be
addressed fo the Board of Schoel Directors of the New Hope-Solebury Schoo!l District. We cannot provide
assurance that unmodified opinions will be expressed. Clrcumstances may arise In which it Is necessary for us to
modify our opinions or add emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraphs. [f our opinions are other than
unmodified, we will discuss the reasons with you in advance. if, for any reason, we are unable to complete the
audit or are unable o form or have not formed opmlons we may decline to express opinions or issue reports, or
may withdraw from this engagement.

If circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability of sufticient, appropriaie audit
evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of the financial statements caused by
error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which in our professional judgment prevent us
from completing the cudit or forming an opinion on the financial statfements, we retdin the right 1o take any
course of action permilted by professional standards, including declining to express an opinion or Issue a reporf,
or withdrawing from the engagement,

We will also provide a report (that does not include an opinion) on intemal control related to the financial
statements and compliance with the provisions of laws, reguiations, confracts, and grant agreements,
noncompiicnce with which could have a material effect on the financial statements as required by Government
Auditing Standards. The report on internal control and compliance and cther matters will include a paragraph
that states (1) that the purpose of the repori is solely o describe the scope of testing of internal control and
compliance, and the results of thal testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entily’s
internal control on compliance, and (2) that the report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. The paragraph
will also siate that the report is not suitable for any other purpose.  If during our audit we become aware that the
New Hope-Solebury Schoot District is subject to an audit requirement that is not encompassed in the terms of this
engagement, we will communicate 1o management and those charged with governance that an oudit in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United Stafes of America and the standards for
financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards may not salisfy the relevant legal, regulatory, or
confractual requirements.

Audit Procedures — General

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures In the financial
statements; therefore, our audit will involve judament about the number of transactions fo be examined and the
arecs o be fested. An audil also includes evaluafing the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounling eslimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presenfation of the financlal statements. We will plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
aboul whether the financial statements are free of material misstalement, whether from (1) errors; (2) fraudulent
financial reporting; (3) misapproprialion of assets; or {4) viclations of laws or governmental regulaiions that are
aftributable to the govermnment or o acts by management or employees acting on behalf of the government.
Because the determination of abuse is subjective, Government Auditing Standards do not expect auditors to
provide reasonable assurance of detecting abuse,

Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control, and
because we will not perform a detailed examination of all fransactions, there is a risk that material misstatements
may exist and not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and performed In accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted In fhe United States of America and Government Auditing Siandards,
In addition, an audil is not designed to detect immaterial misstafements or violations of laws or governmental
regulations that do not have a direct and material effect on the financial sfatements. However, we will inform the
appropriate level of management of any material etrors, any fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation
of assels that come to our attention, We will also inform the appropridte level of management of any viclations of
laws or governmental regulations thaf come fo our attention, unless clearly inconsequential, and of any material
abuse that comes to our attention. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered by our audit and
does not extend lo any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.




Engagement Lefler Mr. Lechman
Apil 10, 2018 Page 3

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the accounts,
and may incilude tests of the physical existence of inventories, and direct confirmation of receivables and cerain
ofher assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected individuals, funding sources, creditors, and financial
institutions. We wili request wiitten representafions from your aitomeys as part of the engagement, and they may
bill you for respending to this inquiry, At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain wrilten representations
from you about your responsibilifies for the financial statements; compliance with laws, reguiations, contracts, and
grant agreemenis; and other responsibilities required by generally accepled auditing standards,

Audft Procedures — Infemal Control

Qur audit will include obtaining an understanding of the enfity and ifs environment, Including internal control,
sufficient o assess he risks of maferial misstaiemeni of the financial statements and fo design the nature, timing,
and extent of further audit procedures. Tests of confrols may be performed to test the effectiveness of certain
conlrols that we consider relevant to preventing and detecting errors and fraud that are material to the tinancial
statements and to preventing and detecting misstatements resulting from illegal acts and other noncompliance
matters that have a direct and matetial effect on the financial statements. Cur tesfs, if performed, will be less in
scope than would be necessary to render an opinion on internal control and, accordingly, no opinfon will be
expressed in our report on interndl control issued pursuant fo Government Audifing Standards.

An audit is nol designed to provide assurance on internat control or fo identify significant deficiencles or material
weaknesses. However, during the audil, we wil communicale fo management and those charged with
governance internal contrel related matters that are required to be communicated under AICPA professional
standards and Government Auditing Standards.

Audlt Procedures — Complliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are fiee of maferial
misstafement, we will perform tests of the New Hope-Solebury School Distiict's compliance with the provisions of
dpplicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants. However, the objective of our audit will not be
fo provide an opinion on overall compliance, and we will not express such an opinion in our report on
compliance Issued pursuant o Governmeni Audifing Standards.

Other Services

We will also assist in preparing the financial statemenis and related noles of the New Hope-Solebury School
Distiict in conformity with accounting principles generdlly accepted In the United States of America based on
information provided by you. these nonaudit services do not constitute an audil under Government Auditing
Standards, and such services will not be conducted in accordance wilth Government Audifing Standards, We will
perform the services in accordance with applicable professional standards. The ofher services are limited to the
financial statement services previously defined. We, in our sole professional jucdigment, reserve the right to refuse
to perform any procedure or take any action thal could be construed as assuming management responsibilifles.

Management Responsibilities

Management is responsible for designing, implementing, and maintaining effective internal controls, including
evaluating and monitoring ongoing activities, to help ensure that appropriate goals and objectives are met;
following laws and regulations; and ensuring that management and financial information is reliable and propetly
reported. Management is also responsible for implementing systems designed to achieve compliance with
applicable laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements. You are also responsible for the selection and
application of accounting principles, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements and all
accompanying information in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, and for compliance with applicable laws and regulations and the provisions of contracts and grant
agreements,

Management is also responsible for making all financlal records and related information available to us and for
the accuracy and completeness of that information. You are also respensible for providing us with (1) access o




Engagement Letter Mr. Lechman
Aoril 10, 2018 Page 4

all infermation of which you are aware that is relevant fo the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements, (2) additional information that we may request for the purpose of the audlf, and (3) untesiricted
access to persons within the government from whom we delermine if necessary fo oblain audit evidence.

Your responsibiliies include adjusting the financial statements to comect material misstatements and for
confirming to us in the written representation ielter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements aggregated
by us during the current engagement and pertaining fo the latest period presented are Immaterial, both
individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements taken as a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and conirols to prevent and detect fraud,
and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the government involving (1) management; (2)
employees who have significant roles in infernal control; and (3) others where the fraud could have a maferial
effect on the financial siatements. Your responsibilities include Informing us of your knowledge of any aliegations
of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the govemment received in communications from employees, former
employees, grantors, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying and ensuring thal the
government complies with applicable laws, regulations, contracts, agreements, and grants and for taking fimely
and appropriate steps to remedy fraud and noncompliance with provisions of faws, regulations, confracts or
grant agreements, or abuse that we report.

You are reqguired to disclose In the financial statements the date through which subsequent evenis have been
evaluated and whether that dafe is the date the financial statements were issued or were avallable fo be issued.
You agree that you will not date the subsequent event note earlier than ihe dale of the management
representation lefter, '

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining o process for tracking the staius of audit findings
and recommenddations. Managementf Is also responsible for ideniifying and providing report copies of previous
financlal audils, attestation engagements, performance audifs, or other studies related to the objectives
discussed in the Audit Objectives section of this letter. This responsibility includes relaying to us cotrective actions
taken to address significant findings and recommendations resulting from those audits, attestation engagements,
performance audits, or other studies. You are also responsible for providing management's views on our current
findings, conclusions, and recommendalions, as well as your planned corrective actions, for the report, and the
liming and format for providing that information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities refating to the financial statements and related notes and
any other nonaudit services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management representation
letter our assistance with preparation of the financial siatements and relafed notes and that you have reviewed
and approved the financial statements and related notes prior {o thelr Issuance and have accepted
responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonaudit services by desighating an Individual,
preferably from senior management, who possesses suifable skill, knowledge, or experience; evaluate the
adequacy and results of those services; and accept responsibility for them.

With regard 1o the electronic disseminafion of audited financial siafements, including financial statements
published electronically on your website, you understand that electronic sites are a means to distibute
information and, therefore, we are not required to read the information contained in these sites or to consider the
consistency of other information in the elecironic site with the original document.

During the course of our engagement, we will request information and explanations from management
regarding, among other things, the government's operations, internal controls, future plans, specific fransactions,
and accounting systems and procedures. At the conclusion of our engugement, we will reguire, as a
precondition to the issuance of owr reporl, that management provide cerlain representations in a wiitten
representation lelter. The procedures we will perform in our engagement and the conclusions we reach as a
basis for our report will be heavily influenced by the written and oral representations that we receive from
management. You agree that we shali nof be responsible for any claim that may arise out of or relaie to any of
the wiitten or oral representations relied upon by us in issuing our report fo you,




Engagement Leter Mr. Lechman
Aprl 10, 2018 Page 5

alatalallilats ) Hher-core o indemoibicuncl hnls aYaliaalf= =GR a2 alilie -laala ol oci-potantia cbod

and you agree o tender a defense (including provldlng oounsel] on ouf behalf reasonably acceplapteo us, to
detend against any claim, demand, or potential fiability arising out of our services—eefformed under this
engagement asserfed, brought, or commenced against us by any third pg =Gting fo or peraining to any
false or misleading representations by any officer, director, or membsrof-Your management team. H is expressly
understood that your indemnification and duly o defepd-etiigations apply even if such claim, demand, or
potenticl liability asserts that we were negligend-iT any way or that the claimed negligence was our own
negligence. If you fail fo lender a defenss, you agree to pay all of our costs and aitorneys’ fees incurred by us
incident o defending agginst-aity such claim, demand, or potential liability asserted, brought, or commenced
against us by a il parfy.  Additionally, you agree to reimburse us for any seftlement reached by us or any
mongigp-award pa[d by us [un!ess you hove tendered the defense required herein} in the event any such claim,

SEmanc—ar-notantialliabilib s asseded brovuaht ar cammancenl oeein e any third pory

~

You-agiee-that-any-claim-dispule—orcauso-oi-astion-thal-may-arsc-ou S-CRGEHISRen Ortetete—n-an

way, lo this engagement, prior to any claim or cause of acﬂon belng brou [Lary--eomt—or (n any other
proceeding, must first be brought 1o the atiention of aur MeregfrryFariner by wrilten nofice (“Informal Dispute
Notice”), and you agree_to_give-the—io gmg Pariner at least wenty (20) dqys after receipt of your Informal

[isnrtebdir O rosnlve (i h.claim ar disnute fafarmal Dismlts Broced

Bucks County, Pennsyivania. Pennsylvania

Any court action or other litigation shall be conducted only within He-Ceunly-otew-CasiieDoleware, Delowae —
law shall apply Irespecilve of any conflicts of laws rules. You agree and consent o personal jurisdiction in the

federal and state courls located in Mew-Cestie-Seunty—Betaweare: The pariles both agree to walve any right fo a
frial by jury in any dispute. Bucks County, Pennsylvania

Indemnification. Ynless othenwise prohibited by law or applicable professional standard, each Party ("Indemnifying Party") shall indemnify and hold harmiess the other Party ("Indemnified Party") and #ts board members, agents, employees, and
representatives from and against any causes of action, damages {whether compensatary, consequential, special, indirect, Incidental, punitive, exemplary, or of any other type or nature}, costs and expenses {including, without limitation,
reasonable attomeys'fees) brought cor claimed against the Indemnified Party and arising out of or relating to the wrongful or negligent actions of the Indemnifying Party in connection with this engagement. This provision shall survive the
termination of this agreement for any reason, and shall apply to the fulfest extent of the law, whether in contract, tort, or othenwise.




Engagement Lelter Mr. Lechman
Apil 10, 2018 Page &

Other Matters

An auditer Is required fo be "independent” under applicable professional guidelines, If, at any time, our
Independence is questioned, challenged, or otherwise at risk, we reserve the right fo immediately discontinue
any further services until such fime as such independence issue is resolved to our satisfaction. You agree that you
shall have no claim against us for any breach of this agreement if we, in good falth, cease performing work
under this engagement due to any Issue of independence,

You agree, during the term of this engagement and for a period of six (6) months following the conclusion of this
engagement, not to discuss with or otherwise solicit for employmenit, hire, andfor appoint any person employed
by us without our prior written consent. This prohibition shall apply fo each and all entities controlied by you or
any of your management team. If we give permission for you to engage in any act that you would otherwise be
in violafion of this prohibition, you agree fo pay for all additional services that we reasenadbly deem to be
necessary in order to maintain our independence. If you engage In any act that would be in violation of this
prohibition, any reports issued by us shail be automatically deemed withdrawn and void.

The parties agree that no third-party beneficlaries are intended fo be created by this engagement or by the work
petformed by us In connection with this engagement. However, without limiting the applicability of the foregoing,
it is expressly understood thal any person or entity claiming to be a third-party beneficiary of our services under
this engagement shall be bound by all of the provisions of this engagement,

related to knowledge or information related to this engagement

ald]a ) =1laska] = - - Al =T alfalaislal= A8Vl N ) miNalalahy = - - k=] A =T~ Cl
ssh-tme. We will nolify you of the receipt of any eaeh slbpoena, court order, or other legal process, unless
prohibited by law, by forwarding same to your last known address in our billing records. Unless we receive from
you, atleast cowesk before the response deadtine in any such subpoenaq, court order, or other legal process, a
court order quashing or other evidence satisfactery to us in our sole discretion that such response deadline s

extended, we will respond to such subpoena, court order, or other legal process.

5 @
5 @
S

Engagement Adminisiration, Price, and Other

We may from time fo time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving your
dccount. We may share confidential informaition about you with these service providers, but remain committed
o maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain internal policies,
procedures, and safeguards to protect the confidentiality of your personal information. In addition, we will
secure confidentiality agreements with all service pioviders fo mainiain the confidentiality of your information,
and we will fake reasonable precaulions to delermine that they have appropriate procedures In place fo prevent
the unauthorized release of your confidential information to others. In the event that we are unable to secure an
approptiate confidentiality agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior fo the sharing of your
confidential information with the third-party service provider, Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work
provided by any such third-parfy service providers.

We understand that your employees will prepare all cash, or other confirmations we request and will locale any
documents selected by us for tesling. We will schedule the engagement based In part on deadiines, working
conditions, and the availabilily of your key personnel. We will plan the engagement based on the assumption
that your personnel will cooperafte and provide assistance by performing tasks such as preparing requested
schedules, retrieving supporting documents, and preparing confirmations. If for whatever reason your personnel
are unavailable fo provide the necessary assistance in a timely manner, it may substantially increase the work we
have fo do lo complete the engagement within the established deadlines, resulfing in an increase in price over
our original price estimate.

We will provide copies of our reports fo the New Hope-Solebury School Districh; however, management is
responsible for distribution of the reports and the financial statements. Unless restiicled by low or regulation, or
containing privileged and confidential information, coples of our repotts are to be made available for public
inspection.




prepared by Barbacane, Thornton &

Company LLP, ) , other than the
Engagement Lefter final report and Mr. Lechman
Apiil 10, 2018 __~|financial Page 7
/ statements,
The audit documentafionifor this engagement e properlty of Barbacane, Thornton & Company LLP and

constitutes confidential information. However, subject to applicable lows and regulations, audit documentation
and appropriate individuals will be made available upon request and in a timely manner fo o regulator or its
designee, o federal agency providing direct or indirect funding, or the U.S, Government Accountability Office for
purposes of a quality review of the audit, to resolve audit findings, or to cany out oversight responsibifities. We will
nofify you of any such request. [f requested, access to such cudit documentation will be provided under the
supervision of Barbacane, Thormnton & Company LLP personnel. Furthermore, upon request, we may provide
copies of selected audit documentaiion to the aforementioned parties. These parties may infend, or decide, to
distribute the copies or information conidined therein fo others, including other govermnmental agencies. The
government agrees to compensate us for the lime we expend in connection with such response and fo reimburse
us for all out-of-pocket costs incurred in that regard.

The audit documentation for this engagement will be retained for a minimum of seven years after the report
release dale. If we are aware that a federal awarding agency or auditee is contesting an audil finding, we will
contact the pariy(ies) contesting the audit finding for guidance prior to destroying the audit documentation.

Jeffrey A, Kowalczyk, CPA, CFE, CGAP is the engagement partner and is responsible for supervising the
engagement and signing the reports or authorizing another individual to sign them. To ensure that Barbacane,
Thornton & Company LLP's independence is not impalred under the AICPA Code of Professional Conduct, you
agree fo Inform the engagement partner before entering into any substantive employment discussions with any
of our personnel.

Our price for these services will be at our standard hourly rates plus out-of-pocket expenses. We estimaite that our
price for the above services will be $19,500 for each year (517,500 for the audit, and $2,000 for non-aitest
services). Our standard hourly rates vary according to the degree of responsibility involvedi and the expetience
level of the personnel assigned fo your audif. Our invoices for these services will be refidered each month as
work progresses and are payable upon presentalion. Interest is charged ot a rate of H¥&percent per month on
past due invoices. In accordance with our firm polictes, work may be suspended if your account becomes 90
days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid in full, I we elect to terminate our
services for nonpdyment, our engagement will be deemed fo have been completed upon wiitten notification of
termination, even if we have not completed our repori(s}. You will be obligaled fo compensate us for all time
expended and to reimburse us for all ocuf-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination. The suspension
or termination of our work may result in adverse consequences fo you including your failure to meet deadlines
imposed by governments, lenders, or other third pariies. You agree that we will not be responsible for your failure
to meet such deadlines, or for penalties or interest that may be assessed against you resulting from such failure,
The above price is based on anlicipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit, The price does not include a single audit in
accordance with the Uniform Guidance. If significant addifional #ime Is necessary, we will discuss it with you and
arrive at a new price estimate,

You may request that we perform additional services not addressed In this engagement letter. If this occurs, we
will communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the estimated price. We also may
issue a separate engagement letter covering the additional services. In the dbsence of any other written
communication from us documenting such addifional services, our services will continue io be governed by the
lerms of this engagemeni letter.

Ouwr audit engagement ends on delivery of our audit report. Any follow-up services that might be required will be
a separate, new engagement. The ferms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new,
specific engagement lefter for that service.

This engagement lefter is contractual in nature and includes all of the relevant terms that will govern the
engagement for which it has been prepared. The lerms of this letter supersede any prior or contermperaneous
oral or wrilten discussions, negotiations, representalions, promises, or commitments by or between the parlies.
Any medifications, changes, or additions to the terms set forth in this letter will only become effective if evidenced
by a writing signed or fransmitted by the parly against whom such amendment or modification is sought to be
enforced clearly indicating assent to such amendrment or modification.




Engagement Lefter Mr. Lechman
April 10, 2018 Page 8

We appreciate the opportunily 1o be of service o the New Hope-Solebury School Distiict and believe this letter
accurately summarizes the significant terms of our engagement. If you have any questions, please lef us know. If
you agree with the terms of our engagement as described in this letter, please sign the enclosed copy and return
it to us.

Very tiuly yours,

il et 4 G LLP

BARBACANE, THORNTON & COMPANY LLP

/i

Enciosure

RESPONSE:

This letter correctly sefs forih the understanding of the New Hope-Solebury School District.

Approved by

Andrew Lechman, Business Administrator/Board Secretary

Date

Eng&Memof2018June/NewHope-SofeburysD.govybaudit.ong




iCE

TRAINING INSTITUTE

MASTER SERVICE AGREEMENT

This Agreement (“Agreement”) is made by and between ALICE Training Institute LLC (“ATI") with its principal place of business at 3593
Medina Road #320, Medina, OH 44256 and the Customer described below, ATI agrees to furnish services as described below (“Services”)
for certain training programs offered by ATI. This Agreement constitutes with respect to the Services the entire agresment between

Customer and ATE

Customer: New Hope-Solebury School District Proposal No: Q-00425
Charles Malone Proposal Expires:  5/12/2018
cmalone@nhsd.org Proposal By: Joanna Lucas
Email: jlucas@alicetraining.com
Services: ALICE Services listed below, each subject to the applicable Terms and Conditions attached hereto.
Term: The 12 month term for recurring Setvices begins on 5/1/2018 and ends on 4/29/2021.
Payment: Invoiced Annually - Net 15
ANNUAL RECURRING SERVICES
Item Description Quantity Price
10600 Elearning Users (K12) 250 $2,497.50
1200 Elearning Support & Maintenance 1 $250.00
Annual Recurring Price: 52,747 50
TOTAL RECURRING PRICE OVER TERM: $8,242.50
item Description Quantity Price
4000 The ALICE Organizational Ceriification program helps mitigate legal and financial 1 $0.00

risk by ensuring your violent intruder response plan complies with Federal and State
guidelines. A comprehensive document set includes customizable policy templates,
implementation best practices, and program roli-out plans.

TOTAL ORNE-TIME PRICE: $0.00
TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE OVER TERM: $8,242.50

Accurate Sales Tax will be added when applicable.

Proposal No: Q-00425

Page 10f 8




ilF

TRAINING INSTITUTE

IN WITNESS WHEREGF, the parties have caused their respective duly authorized representatives to execute this Agreement in
censideration of the promises and mutual covenants contained herein.

ATI SIGNATORY CUSTOMER BILLING INFORMATION
Name: Biling Contact Name:

Date: Billing Phone:

Signature: Billing Email:

Billing Address:

CUSTOMER SIGNATORY

Name:

Title: Federal Tax ID:

Date: Purchase Order:
Signature: Sales Tax Exempt No.

*Sales Tax Exemption Certificate must be attached.

Praposal No: Q-00425

Page 20of 8




TRAINING TNSTITUTE

TERMS AND CONDITIONS - SERVICES

By executing the Master Service Agreement, You agree to these terms and conditions (the “Terms and Conditions”). If You are entering
Into the Agreement on behalf of a company or other legal entity, You represent that You have the authority to bind such entity and its
Affiliates (as defined below) to these Terms and Conditions. [f You do not have such authority, or if You do not agree with these Terms
and Conditions, You must not accept the Agreement and may not use the Services (as defined below).

These Terms and Conditions describe the terms under which the Alice Training Institute, LLC ("ATI") offers You access to lts Services.
By accessing the Services, You agree to comply with and to be bound by the Terms and Conditions set out herein.

In the event of any canflict between the provisions contained in an Agreement and these Terms and Conditions, the provisions in

the Agreement shall control (provided, however, that the fact that a provision appears in an Agreement but not these Terms and
Conditions, ar in these Terms and Conditions, but not the applicable Agreement, shall not be deemed to be a conflict for purposes of
this sentence).

1

1.1

1.2
1.3
1.4
1.5
1.6
1.7

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

Standard Definitions

Affiliates. Means any entity which directly or indirectly controts, is controlled by, or is under common control with a party to the
Agreement.

Agresment. Means the Master Service Agreement between You and Us.

ALICE. Means the violent intruder response program that includes Alert, Lockdown, Inform, Counter, and Evacuate strategies.
Beta Services. Means Our services that are not generally available to customers.

Fees. Means all monetary charges for Services resulting from the Agreement and these Terms and Conditions.

Marks. Means Our trademarks, service marks, bogo and certification marks.

Program. Means ALICE and RAIDER collectively or individually.

RAIDER. Means the solo officer tactical training program that includes Rapid Deployment, Awareness, Intervention,
Decisiveness, EMS, and Recovery strategies.

Registrant. Means an individual who is authorized by You to access the Services.

Services. Means the Services confracted for in the Agresment, which may include instruction and teaching of the Program using
the ATI approved curricula and training models.

We, Us, Our. Means the Alice Training Institute, LLC,

You, Your. Means You as an individual or the legal entity identified as the Customer in the Agreement.

Obligations of ATl

Training. We shall carry out the Services at the time and place upon which the parties agree in writing.

Quality. We represent and warrant that: i) the Services will be performed in a professional and workmanlike manner, in
accordance with generally accepted Industry standards; and, i) We have all rights including, without limitation, intellectual
properly rights to the Services and to provide the Services for use by You in accordance with these Terms and Conditions and
the Agreement.

Additional Services. The parties may agree to add Services to the Agreement from time to time. We shall provide a price estimate
of such extra Services and will finalize a price proposal for the additional Services to which You must agree, in writing and In
advance, before such additional Services are incorporated to the Agreement.

Customer Obligations for eLearning Services

Responsibility for Use. To enable access and use of the Services, You agree to: (i) obtain access to the world-wide web; (ii)
complete the implementation and setup process as directed by Us including, but not limited to, Registrants agresing to the

Proposal No: (-00425

Page 3 of 8




3.2

33

34

3.5

3.8

3.7

4.1

Alil

TRAINING INSTITUTE

terms and conditions presented on Our eLearning portal, which may change from time to time, provided that any such terms and
conditions that purport to amend any provision of thase Terms and Conditions and/or the Agreement shall be null and void and of
no effect; (iii) be responsibla for maintaining the confidentiality of any passwords and account information provided by Us to You;
and {iv) to immediately notify Us of any unauthorized use of Your account, breach of security or loss or theft of Registrant user
iDs or passwords. :

Reagistrations and Registrants. Your Agreement will specify a number of Registrants allowed for a given Service and Fee. You will
be billed for any registrations beyond this number at the rate specified in your Agreement, or the then current rates for overage

if none is specified. Except for price, which may differ, You agree that Registrants incurred heyond the contracted level will be
subject to these Terms and Conditions.

You agree that the number of Registrants listed on the Agreement is the minimum number of Registrants for which You will pay
annually. Should there be fewer Registrants than this minimum number, Fess will not be reduced. Unused Registrations will not

roll over to another term year.

Responsibilities. You wilf provide complete and accurate data. We may rely upon such data when praviding You Services. If Your
data provided to Us is inaccurate andfor incomplete, We will not be liable for any performance or alleged non-perfarmance of
Services caused by such inaccuracy or incompleteness.

If specified on the Agreement, We may assign you one or more user IDs and passwords that will enable You to access the
Services. You shall take reasonable precautions to protect against theft, loss or fraudulent use of such IDs and passwords. You
will use the Services only for lawful purposes and in accordance with these Terms and Conditions.

Designation of Adminisirative Liaison. You shail designate an individual who shall be Our main point of contact ("Administrative
Liaison"). The Administrative Liaison will be responsible to consult with Us regarding the Services and whether the Services are
reasonably addressing Your eLearning needs. The Administrative Liaison will respond to all of Qur communications seeking
information within one (1) business day.

Notification of Service. In consultation with Us, the Liaison shall use commerglally reasonable efforts to promote the Services to
Registrants. In so doing, the Administrative Liaison shall include a written notification that Your organization has purchased a
certain number of subscriptions to the Service.,

Technical Requirements. You shall be responsible for achieving the following technical requirements to enable access and use of
the Services:

Whitelist the following domains on firewalls:

. cloud.scorm.com
. portal.alicetraining.com
. mg.alicetraining.com (also whitelist on mail servers for noreply@mg.alicetraining.com)

Supported Browsers: |E 9+, Safari 5+, Chrome 10+, Firefox 4+

Browser Settings:

. Javascript must be enabled.

. Third-party cookies must be allowed.

. Popups must be allowed.

. Add portal.alicetraining.com and cloud.scorm.com as trusted sites.

Other Responsibilities. You shail be responsible, where applicable, for Registrants’ compliance and their use of Services in
accordance with the Agreement, these Terms and Conditions and applicable laws and government regulations. In so doing,

You shall not: (i) sell, resell, rent or lease the Services; (ii) operate o modify or abridge the Services; (jii} tamper with or remave
copyright notices and Marks; and, (iv) copy, modify, upload, download, transmit, publish or otherwise distribute any Service
content, except as expressly permitted by the Agreement. You are solely responsible for acquiring and maintaining all equipment,
software and communication services necessary to allow Your access to the Services.

Ownership of Services, Programs and Use Marks

Ownership of Program. You acknowledge that the Program, and know-how relating thereto, and the educational manuals,
brochures, training programs, processes, and information contained or embodied therein (including all intellectual property
related thereto) (collectively "AT! Intellectual Property”} constitute valuable, confidential and proprietary property rights of Ours.
We are and shall remain the sole owner of the ATl Intellectual Property. You further acknowledge that Your use of the Program

Proposal No: Q-00425

Page 4 of 8




4.2

43

4.4

4.5

4.5

5.1

5.2

8.1

TRAINING INSTITUTE

under the Agreement shall not operate to modify or abridge such rights of Ours in the Program or create any rights of Yours in
the Program.

Ownership of Marks. Nothing in the Agreement shall constitute a transfer, license, or assignment of any Marks or other
intellectual property right of either party unless otherwise specifically granted.

Proprietary Rights. You acknowledge that We or Qur licensors retain ali copyright, trademark, trade secret, patent and other
proprietary and intelfectual property rights to the Services, and any or all modifications to the Services, related documentation
and marketing materials regardless of {i} whether such intellectual property notices appear on the materials or (i) whether such
intellectual property notices have been filed with governmental agencies. Nothing in the Agreement will directly or indirectly be
construed to assign or grant You any right of ownership, title or interest in the Services, or any intsllectual property rights relating
thereto,

Except as may be required by applicable law,

Non-Disclosurg/ You agree not to disclose to anyone Our trade secrets and that You will not use any of the Information available
within the Services to compete against Us or reverse engineer Our product offerings. No competitors or future competitors are
permitted access te Our Services or information, and any such access by third parties is unauthorized. You agree that You will
not copy, record, publish, compile, reproduce, republish, use or resell for any competing commercial purpose any information on
our Services. in addition, You agree to pay all reasonable attorney's fees and costs Incurred by Us in enforcing these provisions.

Copyright Act. To the best of Our knowledge, all material published by Us and other media properties, are done in full agreement
with the original copyright owners (be that ATl or another third party). If You come across a situation where You suspect that this
may not be the case, in accordance with the Digital Millennium Copyright Act (DMCA), We ask that You contact:

Alice Training Institute, LLC.

ATTN: General Counsel

2508 Medina Road

Medina, OH 44256

Suggestions for Improvement: We shall have a royalty-free, warldwide, irrevocable, non-exclusive, perpetual license to use and
incorporate into the Services any suggestions, enhancement requests, recommendations or other feedback provided by You and

~ the Registrants, relating to the operation or content of the Services.

Licensing of Services, Programs and Use Marks

License Grant. Subject to these Terms and Conditions, We will provide You with a non-exclusive, non-transferable license to
access and use the Services as upgraded from time to time. You may use the Services only for purposes of performing Your
internal training operations. You may not use the Services as part of a commercial time- sharing or service-bureau operation or
in any other resale capacity. Except for the foregoing license, no other rights in the Services are granted to You hereunder. The
Services are and will remain Our sofe and exclusive property and that of Qur licensors, if any, whether the Services are separate
or integrated with any other products, services or deliverables.

License o ALICE Marks. During the Term, We hereby grant to You and Your Affiliates a limited, non-transferable, non-exclusive,
non-assignable license to use and display Marks (e.g., the ALICE trademark, service marks, and logo). In the event that We
reasanably object to the manner in which You use Our Marks, hereof, We shall notify You in writing and You shall cease using
such Marks in the manner found objecticnable.

You agree not to use any Marks on stationery, business cards or signs with Your logo or within internet domain names or
company names. Use of these references could incorrectly imply more than a safety certification relationship between the parties.

Upon termination of the Agreement, all material that rafers to a Certification Mark shall be immediately removed from distribution
and further use of any Marks shalf be discontinued.

If some building locations within Your organization are entitled to bear the Certification Mark but others are not, You must make it
clear which locations are certified by Us and which are not. You agree not to use the Certification Mark in gensral advertising or
promotional material to suggest that non-certified locations have in fact been certifted.

Limitation of Warranties and Liability

Disclaimer of Warranties. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN, NEITHER PARTY MAKES ANY WARRANTIES OF
ANY KIND, WHETHER EXPRESS, IMPLIED, STATUTORY CR OTHERWISE, AND EACH PARTY SPECIFICALLY DISCLAIMS
ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW. EXCEPT AS EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN,

Proposal No: Q-00425

Page 5 of 8




6.2

8.1

8.2

9.1

9.2

9.3

10

10.1

10.2

10.3

ilF

TRAFNING INSTITUTE

YOU AGREE THAT THE ALICE SYSTEM IS PROVIDED ON AN "AS [S” BASIS. WE DO NOT REPRESENT THAT THE
SERVICES WILL MEET YOUR REQUIREMENTS OR THAT THE SERVICES WILL BE UNINTERRUPTED OR ERROR FREE.

WE EXPRESSLY DISCLAIM ANY AND ALL LIABILITY FOR ANY CLAIM FOR INJURIES OR DAMAGES RELATED TO
THE USE OF THE SERVICES, EXCEPT FOR DAMAGE ARISING OUT OF THE SERVICES’ INFRINGEMENT OF ANY THIRD
PARTY INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS, THE VIOLATION OF APPLICABLE DATA PRIVACY OR DATA SECURITY
LAWS, AND INJURIES OR DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF OUR GROSS NEGLIGENCE.

Limitgtion of Liability. IN NO EVENT SHALL EITHER PARTY HAVE ANY LIABILITY TO THE OTHER PARTY FOR ANY LOST
PROFITS OR REVENUES, ADDITIONAL EMPLOYEE HOURS, LOSS OF ANTICIPATED SAVINGS, OR FOR ANY INDIRECT,
SPECIAL, INCIDENTAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY, COVER OR PUNITIVE DAMAGES, HOWEVER CAUSED,
WHETHER IN CONTRACT, TORT OR UNDER ANY OTHER THEORY OF LIABILITY, AND WHETHER OR NOT THE PARTY
HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. THE FOREGOING DISCLAIMER SHALL NOT APPLY TO
THE EXTENT PRCHIBITED BY APPLICABLE LAW.

Organization Certification. We agree to issue an ALICE certificate that demonstrates You are an authorized licensee including
any certification level that may be associated with the Services during the Term. This certification (the “Certification”) shall
include: (i) Your name, {ii) an ALICE Certified Mark including safety level, (i} a Certification number, and {iv) issue and expiration
dates. You agree that We may publish this organizational certificate on the Alice certification directory. Additionally, You agree
that We may issue a press release identifying the same, subject to Your prior approval, which will not be unreasonably withheld
or delayed.

Registrant (Individual) Certification

Individua| Certificate. Each Registrant who completes a training Service shalt be awarded a certificate (the “Individual Certificate™)
that bears the Marks for that Service. Individual Certificate shall include: (i) Registrant's name; (i) ALICE Certified Mark including
any designated safety level; (ifi) Certification number; and (Hi) issue and expiration dates.

Printed Certificates. At the sole expense of the Registrant, ATl shall make avallable, for a nominal fee, a printed certificate for any
valid Individual Certificate. Certificates will be printed and mailed via US Postal Services.

Fees, Payment and Taxes

Fees and Payment. You agree to pay all Fees and other charges in accordance with the Agreement, If You do not pay Fees
or other charges when they are due, then such amounts owing may accrue late interest at the maximum rate permitted by law
from the date such payment was due until the date paid. Payment shall be made by check or wire transfer, unless the parties
otherwise agree. Annual Fees are charged per annum. As an example, if the Term spans three years, You will be charged the
annual Fee three times.

Additional Registrants. If, during the Term, You require additional Registrants, beyond what is specified in the Agreement, You
will be charged a pro-rata fee for each additional Registrant, which Fee shall be agreed upon by the parties, in writing.

Taxes. Fess do not include any iaxes, levies, duties or similar governmental assessments of any nature, including but not fimited
to value-added, sales, use or withholding taxes, assessable by any local, state, provincial, federal or forsign jurisdiction, but
excluding taxes basad on Our net income {collectively, "Taxes"). You are responsible for paying all Taxes associated with the
Agreement and agree to indemnify and hold Us harmless from any liability for such charges, penalties or interest in connection
therewith.

Term and Termination

Term. The Term is given on the first page of the Agreement. If the Term spans several years, then each year of the Agreement
is termed a "Confract Year”. The parties may agree to extend the Term upon written agreement. The number of Registrants
specified on the Agreement pertains to each year of the Contract Year.

Termination for Cause. Either party may terminate the Agreement if (i) the other party breaches any material term or condition
and fails to cure within thirty (30) days’ written notice, or (i) the other party becomes the subject of a petition in bankruptcy or

any proceeding relating to insolvency, liquidation or receivership. If a breach on our part remains uncured after the thirty (30) day
period, then You may terminate the applicable Agreement immediately. In such case, We will promptly refund the remaining Fees
for which Services have yet to be renderad, as of the termination.

Overdue Charges. In the event of Your non- payment, We may accelerate and declare all Fees due, under the Agreement,
immediately payable without notice or demand. All accelerated payments due under the Agreement shall be discounted to their

Proposal No: Q-00425

Page 6 of 8




ALIlF

TRAINIRG INSTITUYE

net present value at a discount rate of 5% per annum from the day of default. If you fail to pay Fees when due, then You shall
also be liable for all Fees due duwing the Term and any additional reasonable expenses (including but not limited to reasonable
attorney’s fees and accrued interest) that We incur in collecting such delinquent fees.

10.4 Suspension, In the event of non-payment, We reserve the right to restrict access to the Services. You agree that such
resfrictions do not modify the Fees due under the Agreement.

11 Use of Data. Data provided by You while using the Services will only be used by Us as reasonably required for providing
Services as contemplated hereunder and in accordance with Our Privacy Policy (hitp/iwww.alicetraining.comfabout-us/privacy-
policy/) or any privacy policy subdomain. Unless We have Your permission, We will not disclose or share personally identifiable
information coltected with any third party (except as required by law or pursuant to a governmental request.) We may retain
offline copies of Your data on backup media for archival purposes following expiration or termination of the Agreement, according
to Qur record retention policies, provided that such data shall continue to be protected as confidential. We shall comply with all
applicable laws regarding the privacy and security of personal information.

12 Indemnification. Each party agrees to indemnify, defend and hold the other (and each of its Affiliates, and all of their respective
present and former officers, members, directors, employees, representatives and agents, and the successors, heirs and assigns
of any of these) harmfess from and against any and all losses, liabilities, claims, reasonable costs, damages and reasonable
expenses related to any third-party claim arising directly out of a breach of the other party's obligations and representations and
warranties set forth herein.

13 Additional Development Services. Nothing herein shalf prevent, restrict, or limit in any manner: (i} Our continuing to develop
the Service(s) in an effort to increase the value of the Service(s) (e.g., by adding new and or updated content, functionality); or
(ii) Our developing additional Services. We will supply You access to any enhancements and modifications to the Services for
which We do not charge a separate fee. The parties acknowledge that We may introduce new Services from time to time which
will require a separate agreement and a separate fee if You desire to utilize any such new Service.

14 Beta Services. From time to ime, We may invite You to try Beta Services at no charge. Beta Services wil be clearly designated
as beta, pilot, evaluation or similar description. Beta Services are for evaluation purposes and are not considered "Services”
under the Agreement, are not supported, and may be subject to additional terms. We will have no liability for any harm or
damage arising out of or in connection with a Bsta Service, unless caused by Our gross negligence.

15 Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any prior agreement or understanding between the parties whether oral or
written regarding the subject matter hereof. Any additional or conflicting terms contained in Your purchase order, proposal or
other document shall be deemed fo be rejected by Us without need of further notice of objection, even if such document is
acknowledged or accepted by Us, and regardless of any statement to the contrary which may be contained therein, and shall be
of no effect or in any way binding upon Us. The provisions of the Agreement shall be deemed severable, and the unenforceability
of any one or more provisions shall not affect the enforceability of any other provisions.

16 Notice. Any notice pursuant to the Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given: (i) five (5)
business days after the date of mailing if sent by registered or certified U.S. mail, postage prepaid, with return receipt requested;
(i) when delivered if delivered personally or sent by express courier service; (i one business day after transmission if sent by a
confirmed facsimile; or (iv) one business day after transmission via email, provided that the receiving party acknowledges recsipt
by return email, and that the email clearly states in the subject line that it is intended to give notice under the Agreement.

17 Assignment. Except for assignment to an Affiliate, or in the case of a merger, acquisition or sale of all or substantially all assets
of a party, neither party may assign or otherwise transfer any right or obligation set forth in the Agreement without the other
party’s prior written consent, not to be unreasoenably withheld or delayed. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the
benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.

18  Surviving Provisions. The sections titled “Fees & Payment,” "Term and Termination,” “Disclaimer of Warranties”, “Limitations
of Liability,” "Indemnification,” “Ownership of Services,” and "Laws & Disputes,” and “Entire Agreement” shall survive any
termination or expiration of the Agreement.

19  Electronic Signature. The Agreement may be executed and delivered by facsimile, PDF or by other means of electronic

signature and such facsimile. PDF’s or other electronic signatures will be deemed to be vali iginat
' Commonwealth of Pennsylvania

20  Miscellaneous. This Agreement will be construed in accordance with the laws of theéée&e-ef—@hio {excluding its choice-of-law
rules). Th or federal courts located in ill have exclusive jurisdiction over any proceeding reifating to the
Agreement. arties waive their right to a jury trial No Waiver of any breach of any term or condition of the Agreement shall
constitute a waive™sf any subsequent breach. If any term shall be held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be unenforceable,

siate courts located in Bucks County,

. Pennsylvania Philadelphia,
Proposal No: Q-0042; Pennsylvania

Page 7 of 8




13
TRAEN ING INSTITUTE
such term shall be deemed restated, in accordance with applicable law, to reflect as nearly as possible the original intentions of
the parties, and the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. The parties are independent contractors.

This Agreement does not create a partnership, franchise, joint venture, agency, fiduciary or employment relationship between the
parties.

Proposal No: Q-00425

Page 8cof 8




Legal Services Consultation Agreement

For the retainer stated below, Sweet, Stevens, Katz & Williams LLP (*SSKW") will provide the
following services to the New Hope-Solebury School District (*District”) during the 2018-2019
school year:

1. Andrew E, Faust {("Faust"), David Painter {("Painter”) or such other members of the
SSKW attorney staff as are acceptable to the District, will provide telephone and electronic mail
advice and opinions concerning special education, NCLBA compliance, student services, and
student civil rights issues pertinent to the District. Such advice and such opinions shaill be
provided to the administrator or administrators designated by the District as the contact. SSKW
shalt assign to the District a code enabling unlimited access, during the term of this agreement,
to the pool counsel “special education resource room” section of the SSKW Website, a
searchable data base of past pool counsel opinions and materials.

2. Faust, Painter, or such other members of the SSKW attorney staff as are acceptable and
are available to the District will provide up to two (2) full-day face-to-face consultations and file
reviews with District special education and student services administrators during the term of
this Agreement. Scheduling of consultations and file reviews will be on a first come, first served
basis.

3. As an alternative to any face-to-face consultation provided for in paragraph 2 of this
agreement for any given month, Faust, Painter, or such other members of the SSKW attorney
staff as are acceptable to the District will provide or participate in staff, board, or parent fraining
sessions, in-services, or group meetings, concerning special education, NCLBA compliance,
student services, and student civil rights issues, with the specific topics and nature and size of
each such training, in-service, or meeting to be determined solely by the District. Use of “micro-
fraining"—iraining concerning a single or narrow fopic delivered to a small audience for whom
the training is uniguely suited or necessary—is encouraged. Scheduling of training, in-services,
and meetings will be on a first come, first served basis.

The substitution of any attorney for Faust in the perfermance of any of the foregoing duties shall
occur only with the prior approval of the District.

This agreement does not include representation in administrative or judicial proceedings.
Arrangements for such representation must be made separately with SSKW.

In consideration of the foregoing services and commitments, the District shall pay to SSKW the
sum of six thousand dollars ($6,000.00), payable in a single lump sum or ten equal monthly
instaliments, as the District shall designate in writing.

i AR
4/12/2018

Andrew E. Faust Date Authorized Agent Date
Sweet, Stevens, Kaiz & Williams LLP New Hope-Solebury School District




